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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND OR!GINAL {IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

Church Hill, at Timber Ridge, is set among the rolling hills of the Valley of
Virginia in Rockbridge County, adjacent to the. eighteenth~century Timber RLdge
Presbyterian Church, a National Register property. The plantation house is a
two~-story,’ three—hay, rectangular building built of brick laid in Flemish bond
on the front and in five- and seven-course American bond on the sides and rear -
with stuccoed Doric pilasters at the cornmers and mid-points of the long sides, . -
There is an original, one-story’ kitchen ell on the rear, also built of brick which
is laid in nine-course American bond with Flemish variaant. All of the windows

..are glazed with six~over-six sash.and have louvred blinds. A full Doric entabla- ~

ture is carried around the main block. The whole is crowned by a low hipped

. roof with interior.end chimneys and a central monitor with a low balustrade decor-
- ated with sawnwork four-pointed stars. There 1is a portico sheltering the front

-+ door ‘which is in the east bay of the facade. This portico consists of a pedi-

mented roof with a full Doric entablature supported on two pairs of coupled, - -.
unfluted, Greek Doric piers. Stylized, winged orbs decorate the frieze and the

. architrave. = The kitchen ell is undecorated except for a plain board suggesting

a frieze which is attached to the long sides. It too is covered thh a low hlpped
roof and is crowned with an 1nter10r end chimney.‘

The plan of Church Hill is an unusual one; it consiéts of four rooms of unequal
sizes. The main entry of the building opens into the northeast corner room, the
smallest of the four,which contains the principal stairs. The largest room is

the northwest corner room, or parlor; behind this is a third room which presently

serves as a dining room. In the southeast cormer is the original diming room which

" contains an auxjliary stair to the second floor, ascending along the lateral

- - C -

partition wall.

The main stair is an open-string, L-plan one with two rectangular balusters to
a tread, a round banister which is ramped and eased at the urn newels, and no
brackets. . The doors in the stair hall are grained in imitation of mahogany, and

- the stair rlsers have light grey marbleizing with trompe 1'oeil masonry joints.

Noteworthy as well is the early striped green wallpaper which survives in this
room,

-

0ld wallpaper survives in the ﬁarlor as well, This room is further decorated
with a plain mantel with a light molded shelf supported on entablature blocks

‘and & tablet which are molded and which rest upon the light architrave surround.

The doors in this room are grained and retain their origlnal Carpenter locks.

The southwest rooa, Whlch presently serves as the dining room, has a black
Benjaminesque Greek Revival mantel with plain, Doric pilasters supporting an
unadorned frieze. A similar mantel is used in the southeast room, where wallpaper
like that in the parlor covers the walls.

There is no decoration in the kitchen ell which, however, has its origlnal crane
surviving in the fireplace.

N o early outbuildings survive. There is one log building which tradltloh claims
was constructed from logs salvaged from the Sam Houston birthplace cabin, but this

Lo
c1a1@ cannct be Zocumented, DU (see Countinuation Sheet #1)
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Church Hill, a rolling tract of land adjdcent to the Timber Ridge Presbyterian .
Church, is notable for the handsome Greek Revival plantation house which stands -
on it. 'The blockish, hip-robfed form with its stuccoed cormer pilasters, fine-.. .
Flemish- and American-bond brickwork, trompe 1' oéil interior decoration, and . "
plain but graceful interior woodwork is typical of the high standards of crafts~
manship and design which characterized substantial domestic, Greek Revival archi-
tecture in rural America. Built in 1848 by the Thompson family and still owned _
by them, the farm was the birthplace of Sam Houston, a major figure in the American

‘E: settlement and takeover of Texas. Tradition locates the cabin in which Houston

~ was born on the site of the kitchen ell of the present house. . - : :

A

Robert Houston was granted 307 acres of land in what was them Orange County in -
1742 by Benjamin Borden, the original royal patentee of Rockbridge County. )
- Houston deeded one acre of his tract to the Timber Ridge congregation as a site

for its church. When he died in 1761 the title to this holding passed to his son
Samuel, Sam Houston the Texan was born to Samuel and his wife Elizabeth on the
Timber Ridge property in 1793. Thirteen years later the elder Houston moved
to Tennessee, selling the plantation to John Kinnear, whose heirs, in 1836, sold .
136 acres of the tract to Horztio Thompson, Kinnear's son-in-law. Thompson was
minister of the Timber Ridge Associated Reformed Presbyterian Church. The tax - ..
books through the late years of the Kinnear ownership and the first twelve years
of Thompson's possession assess the buildings on the tract at $150. In 1848, $500,
worth of new building was added, but nge total assessment was only $500. This

appears to indicate that the previous building, possibly Houston's Birthnl
wgg demolished in 1848 to make way for the prgéegt housg. uston's birthplace,

The property has passed through three more generations of Thompson family owner-
ship since the first Horatio built the house. Horatio D. Thompson is the present

ovner.

DU, MTP
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6. REPRESENTATION IN EXISTING SURVEYS

(2) Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission Survey
1968, 1977 : State ‘
Virginia Historic Landmarks Commission
Richmond,. Virginia

7. DESCRIPTION

BOUNDARY JUSTLFICATION

The boundaries have been drawn to include the main house, a modern frame

( barn, and the aforementioned log building. The property is bounded on the
northeast and the southeast by roads and on the northwest and southwest by
lines containing the three buildings and four surrounding acres.

‘9. MAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHICAL REFERENCES

Rockbridge County Deed Books F, T, 92, 139; Will Book #24.
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. RMAJOR BIBLIOGRAPHI CAL REFERENCES

(‘ Augusta County Will Book #3.
Crumbaker, Marge. e. "Sam Houston's Early Years." Texas Tewmpo Magazme. Houston, Texas:
The Houston Post, February 25, 1968, p. 12.
Kinnear, Duncan L. "Some Events in the HLstory of the Timber Ridge Presbyterian Church
and Its Community." M].meog:aphed Blacksburg, Virginia: Virginia Polytechnic

Institute, 1958. 1In VHLC files. See Continuation Sheet #1
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VEHBAL BOUNDARY DESCRIPTION
 Beginning at a point on W side of State Route 716 at intersection with State Route

785; thence extending 300" S along W side of State Route 716; thence extending about

500'NW to 1420' contour; thence extending 400' NE to S side of State Route 785; thence |
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. extending about 400' SE along said route to point of or:.g:.n. o -
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As lhe des-gnated State Hnstonc Preservatlon Officer for the National Historic Preservatlon Act of 1968 {Puhlic Law 89-665) I

hereby nominate this property for inclusion in the Natlonal Register and certify that it has been evaluated _according 1o the
criteria and procedures set forth by the b’@"“ e : OO : :
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Cornwall , Virginia 1967
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